
 1 

AGENDA WITH COMMENTARY 
 

GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

802 EAST VILAS 
GUTHRIE, OKLAHOMA 

 
MONDAY 

APRIL 11, 2016 
7:00 P.M. 

 
 
AGENDA: 
 
1. Call to Order 
   
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Establish a Quorum 
 
4. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
5. Presentation of Certified and Support Employee of the Month 
 
6. Comments to the Board by: 
 A. Citizens registered to speak to the Board 
 B. Board Members 
 
7. Superintendent’s Reports 
 
8. Superintendent’s Presentation Regarding School Budget Issues 
   
9. Consent Agenda:…………………………………………………………………….Pages 6-38 
 All of the following items, those items of a routine nature normally approved at Board 
 meetings, will be approved by one vote unless any Board member desires to have a 
 separate vote on any or all of these items.  The Consent Agenda consists of the discussion, 
 consideration and action on the following items: 
 
 A.   Minutes of regular meeting held on March 7, 2016 
 
 B. Treasurer’s Report 
 
 C. New Activity Fund Account request by Guthrie High School 
  
 D. Activity Fund Fundraisers as per attached list 
 
 E. Encumbrances for General Fund #’s 949-997, Building Fund #’s 124-129, Child 

Nutrition Fund # 35, Casualty/Flood Insurance Recovery Fund #4 and listed 
change orders and Activity Fund Reports 

1



 2 

  
 F. Fuel Bid as recommended by bid committee 
 
 G. Contracts/Agreements under $10,000 
  1.     Renewal agreement with Learning Sciences International for 2016-2017 
 
   Commentary: 

This is a renewal of the iObservation evaluation program being used by all site 
principals for evaluations of their teaching staff.  There is no increase over last 
year.  Doug Ogle will answer any questions. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The Superintendent recommends approval. 

   
10. Business Agenda: 
 A. Recommendation, consideration and action upon contract for auditing services for 

2016-2017 for fiscal year 2015-2016…………………………………………....Page 39 
 
  Commentary: 
  Putnam & Company, PLLC has been utilized by the District for the past five years for 

auditing services. Mr. Dennis Schulz recommends renewal of the contract.  Dennis 
Schulz will answer any questions. 

   
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
 B.  Recommendation, consideration and action upon $.10 increase for all paid student 

lunch meals………………………………………………………………….Pages 40-42 
 

Commentary: 
We are required to increase our student full paid meal prices annually until our price is 
equal to the difference between free meal reimbursement and paid meal reimbursement. 
Dennis Schulz will answer any questions. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
The Superintendent recommends approval. 

 
 C. Recommendation, consideration and action upon 2016 Guthrie High School 

Summer School and End of Instruction Test Dates…………………………..Page 43 
 
  Commentary: 
  Pursuant to federal and state laws pertaining to Achieving Classroom Excellence 

(ACE), remediation must be provided to students who failed one or more End of 
Instruction (EOI) exams during the course of the school year.  A breakdown of courses, 
dates, testing schedules and teachers is included in your packet.  Doug Ogle will 
answer any questions. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 

2



 3 

  
 D. Recommendation, consideration and action upon Growth and Development 

presentation by Ms. Debbie Blan R.N. for 5th grade students at Guthrie Upper 
Elementary…………………………………………………………………Pages 44-45 

 
  Commentary: 
  Ms. Debbie Blan will present this 5th grade puberty class in conjunction with the Logan 

County Health Department.  The lesson deals with the emotional and physical growth 
and development of early adolescents with an emphasis on personal hygiene practices.  
A copy of the parent consent form is included in your packet.  Carmen Walters will 
answer any questions. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
 E.  Recommendation, consideration and action to approve E-rate Technology Plan for 

2016-2019…………………………………………………………………....Pages 46-60 
 
  Commentary: 
  E-rate rules require the School District to approve a 3-year Technology Plan each year.  

That Plan is then approved by the State Department of Education.  Dee Benson will 
answer any questions.   

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
 F.  Recommendation, consideration and action to approve E-rate contracts for  
  2016-2017……………………………………………………………………Pages 61-79 
 
  Commentary: 
  The contracts for e-rate purchases must be approved separately from the e-rate 

application.  Dee Benson will answer any questions. 
   
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval.   
  
 G. Recommendation, consideration and action upon new District Policies:.Pages 80-90 
  ●      C-27       Administration of Federal Programs 
  ●      C-27A    Federal Programs Complaint Policy     
 
  Commentary: 
  These were submitted for presentation at last month’s Board meeting and are now being 

brought back as an action item.  They have been reviewed by our legal counsel.  
Carmen Walters will answer any questions. 

   
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 

3



 4 

 H. Recommendation, consideration and action upon contract renewal with Southwest 
Foodservice Excellence, LLC for 2016-2017………………………………..…Page 91 

 
  Commentary: 
  This is our 5th year with Southwest Foodservice.  We continue to have increased 

participation in our breakfast and lunch program.  Participants have been happy with the 
food content.  Southwest is very accommodating with administration when dealing with 
any problems that have arisen.  Dennis Schulz will answer any questions. 

   
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
 
 I. Recommendation, consideration and action upon ratification of a one year 

extension of the existing Group Purchasing Participation Agreement with 
American Purchasing Consortium for 2016-2017……………………..…Pages 92-93 

 
  Commentary: 
  Southwest Foodservice Excellence partners with American Purchasing Consortium 

(APC).  The primary purpose of APC is to provide substantial savings and best value for 
participating agencies through established group purchasing practices.  The partnership 
has no out of pocket direct costs associated to the district.  Dennis Schulz will answer 
any questions. 

 
  RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
  The Superintendent recommends approval. 
      
11. Proposed executive session for the purpose of discussing employment of personnel, 
 FMLA requests, resignation/separation from employment and transfer of position 
 requests all as set out on the Personnel Reports, discussion of all building level 
           administrator’s contracts as listed for 2016-2017, discussion of all district level 
           administrator’s contracts as listed for 2016-2017 and discussion of teacher negotiations for 
           2016-2017, disclosure of which information would violate the confidentiality requirements 
           of state and/or federal law all pursuant to 25 OKLA. STAT. Section 307 (B) 1, 2 and 7 
  A.   Vote to go into executive session 
  B.   Acknowledge Board’s return to open session 
  C.   Statement of minutes of executive session 
 
12. Vote on action as set out on the Personnel Reports………………..…………….……Page 94 
 
13. Recommendation, consideration and action upon building level administrator’s contracts 
 as listed for 2016-2017 without specification for salary or assignment………..…….Page 95  
 
14. Recommendation, consideration and action upon district level administrator’s contracts  
 as listed for 2016-2017 without specification for salary or assignment…………..….Page 96 
 
15. Recommendation, consideration and action to accept any resignations offered since the  
 posting of the agenda 
 

4



 5 

16. Discussion and possible action on new business not known about or could not have been 
reasonably foreseen at the time of the agenda posting 

 
17. Adjourn 
 
 
      Dr. Mike Simpson 
      Superintendent 
 
jf 
 
 
 
Posted by:   
 
Date:                Time:  
 
Place:    
 

5



 1 

 
GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

BOARD MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

MARCH 7, 2016 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION REGULAR 
MEETING HELD AT 7:00 P.M. IN THE OFFICE OF THE BOARD, 802 EAST VILAS, GUTHRIE, 
OKLAHOMA ON MARCH 7, 2016 
 
 
Board Members Present: Gail Davis, Janna Pierson, Travis Sallee, Tina 

Smedley and Sharon Watts  
 
Board Members Absent: Jennifer Bennett-Johnson and Terry Pennington 
 
District Level School Officials Present:  Dr. Mike Simpson, Superintendent 
  Dennis Schulz, Ass’t Superintendent 
  Doug Ogle, Executive Director of 
   Personnel/Secondary Ed 
  Carmen Walters, Executive Director of 
   Federal Programs/Elementary Ed 
  Eldona Woodruff, Director of Special Education 
  Jerry Gammill, Director of Facilities 
  Dee Benson, Director of Technology 
  Steve Cordell, Director of Transportation 
  Jessica Callaway, Director of Child Nutrition 
  Jean Watts, Deputy Minutes Clerk 
   
   
1. The meeting was called to order by President Watts. 
 
2. Members Gail Davis, Janna Pierson, Travis Sallee, Tina Smedley and Sharon Watts were 

present for roll call. 
 
3. A quorum was established. 
 
4. President Watts asked everyone present to stand and join her in the Pledge of 
 Allegiance. 
 
5. President Watts called for a presentation by Mr. Brian Billings from Sonic of East Guthrie.   
 

Mr. Brian Billings from Sonic East presented a check for $7,000 to Principal Chris 
LeGrande from Guthrie High School.  This is an annual donation made by Mr. Billings for a 
number of years. In years past, Mr. Billings had donated $1,000.00 to each site to use where 
the sites felt most needed.  He stated 4 years ago he would like to make one large donation to 
a site whose name had been randomly selected in a drawing.  He felt the larger contribution 

6



 2 

could better be used for a purchase that the school otherwise would not have the funds to 
do.  He thanked Guthrie Schools and stated he hoped to be able to continue the donation for 
many years.  Superintendent Simpson thanked Mr. Billings for his generosity in helping the 
students of our community. 

 
6. President Watts called for presentation of Certified and Support Employee of the Month. 
 
 Mr. Doug Ogle, Executive Director of Personnel and Secondary Education, announced the 
 award winners for February: Ms. Nancy Bradley, GUES 4th Grade Teacher, as certified        
            employee of the month and Mrs. Sandra Savory, GPS District Payroll Clerk, as                       
            support employee of the month.  Nomination letters were read by the staff member who         
            submitted the nominations: Mr. Jeff Ball, GUES Assistant Principal, for Ms. Nancy Bradley 
            and Mr. Dennis Schulz, GPS Assistant Superintendent, for Mrs. Sandra Savory.  
 
 Mr. Ogle presented the award winners a plaque and a $25.00 Sonic Gift Card donated by 
 the Guthrie Lions Club. 
 
7A. President Watts asked the Superintendent if there were any citizens registered to speak to 

the Board. 
       
 Superintendent Simpson stated there were no citizens registered to speak to the Board. 
 
7B. President Watts called for any comments to the Board by Board members.   
 
 There were no comments by Board members. 
  
8. President Watts called for the Superintendent’s Reports. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson reported on the following:  
 
 Recognized that Guthrie Public Schools has received the Silver Award from United Way due 
            to our per capita of participation.   
 

Announced that 2 students from Guthrie Upper Elementary School recently placed at the 
Invention Convention.  Those students were Abbie Eichler, 4th grade, placing 4th with a ‘cool 
helmet liner’, and Clark Christian, 5th grade, placing 3rd with an ‘above ground pool guard’. 

 
Stated his monthly column which spoke of school safety, was released by the media last 
night.  Encouraged all parents, patrons and community members to read the column.  Spoke 
regarding the protocol followed when addressing a school safety issue.   
 
Addressed our current budget situation.  To date, the cuts GPS has received this fiscal year 
from revenue failures and mid-term adjustments total $636,819.  Stated Governor Fallin 
requested tapping the Rainy Day Fund to help with the impact the State Department of 
Education is facing due to budget cuts.  Mr. Schulz added that in addition to the cuts 
received during this fiscal year, we also started the year with less collections in State Aid by 
$800,000.  The total actual loss amount for this year is approximately $1.8 million just for 
our District alone.  Because we have already obligated salaries, contracts etc. for this fiscal 
year, we do not have much room to adjust.  Even if there were no further cuts next year, if 

7



 3 

the revenues and expenditures stay the same as what they are this year, the fund balance will 
be nearly gone by the end of next year.  Dr. Simpson has been trying to prepare the Board, 
staff and community for what lies ahead.  Some changes implemented since last Board 
Meeting to save money include passing the actual cost of field trips to that particular group 
and they must also be approved by Mr. Schulz and Dr. Simpson.  Some departments that 
have not been previously charged for fuel will now be responsible for the actual cost of the 
fuel used.  Going forward, after April 1st, only emergency purchase requests will be 
approved.  This is designed so we can reconcile with better accuracy our fund balance 
through the end of the fiscal year.  We are looking at overtime extensively and Mr. Ogle is 
working on data regarding the cost of personnel by site and department.  New job postings 
are not done without the approval of Dr. Simpson.  We are leaving no stone unturned but 
the reality is this is unprecedented.  The saving grace is we have prepared for this but we 
have limits as to what our budget can tolerate. 
   

9. President Watts called for action on the Consent Agenda. 
 
 There were no items to be removed from the agenda for discussion. 
 
 A motion was made by Sallee and seconded by Smedley to approve the Consent Agenda as 

presented. 
 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10A. President Watts called for recommendation, consideration and action upon contract with the 

Center for Responsive Schools, Inc. for professional development for Elementary Teachers 
from May 31-June 3, 2016. 

 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Pierson to approve the contract with the 

Center for Responsive Schools, Inc. for professional development for Elementary Teachers 
from May 31-June 3, 2016. 

 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10B. President Watts called for recommendation, consideration and action upon contract renewal 

with Municipal Accounting Systems, Inc. for providing software and support for financial 
accounting, personnel, child nutrition and student information programs including student 
gradebooks. 

 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Davis to approve the renewal contract with 

Municipal Accounting Systems, Inc. for providing software and support for financial 
accounting, personnel, child nutrition and student information programs including student 
gradebooks. 

 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10C. President Watts called for recommendation, consideration and action upon request for 

Special Education students to attend State Special Olympics Summer Games May 11-13, 
2016. 

 

8



 4 

 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Smedley to approve the request for Special 
Education students to attend State Special Olympics Summer Games May 11-13, 2016. 

 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10D. President Watts called for recommendation, consideration and action upon K-8 Remedial 

Summer School Program. 
 
 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Davis to approve the K-8 Remedial 

Summer School Program.  
 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
10E. President Watts called for the presentation of proposed new District Policies: 
 ●      C-27       Administration of Federal Programs 
 ●      C-27A    Federal Programs Complaint Policy     
 
 Superintendent Simpson stated this was not an action item.  It was for presentation only and 

would be placed on the April agenda for consideration. 
 
11. President Watts called for proposed executive session for the purpose of discussing 
 employment of personnel, FMLA requests, resignation/separation from employment and 

transfer of position requests all as set out on the Personnel Reports, disclosure of which 
information would violate the confidentiality requirements of state and/or federal law all 
pursuant to 25 OKLA. STAT. Section 307 (B) 1 and 7. 

 
11A. A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Smedley to go into executive session. 
 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays.  Executive session began at 7:29 p.m. 
 
11B. President Watts acknowledged the Board’s return to open session at 7:57 p.m. 
 
11C. President Watts stated that in executive session only those items listed in Agenda 
 Item 11 were discussed and no votes were taken. 
 
12. President Watts called for a vote on action as set out on the Personnel Reports. 
 
 A motion was made by Pierson and seconded by Davis to approve action as set out on the 

Personnel Reports. 
 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
13. President Watts called for recommendation, consideration and action to accept any 

resignations offered since the posting of the agenda. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson stated we had received the resignation of Naymon Braggs, 

Custodian at Fogarty Elementary.  The resignation is effective March 2, 2016. 
 

9



 5 

 A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Sallee to accept the resignation of Naymon 
Braggs. 

 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
14. President Watts called for discussion and possible action on new business not known 
 about or could not have been reasonably foreseen at the time of the agenda posting. 
 
 Superintendent Simpson stated there was no new business. 
 
15. A motion was made by Smedley and seconded by Davis to adjourn the meeting. 
 
 The motion carried with 5 ayes and 0 nays. 
 
 The meeting adjourned at 7:59 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
Jana Frey, Minutes Clerk 
 
 
 
     
E. Sharon Watts, Board President   

 
 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19

l



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



 

                                                                                               
Guthrie Public Schools 

Memo 

To: Dr. Simpson and Guthrie Board of Education   

From: Carmen Walters, Director of Federal Programs/Elementary Education 

Date:    April 6, 2016 

Re: Growth and Development Presentation    

Please find attached a copy of a permission form from Ms. Debbie Blan R. N., Logan 
County Health Department, regarding the Fifth Grade Puberty Lesson to be conducted on 
Wednesday,   May 11, 2016 at Guthrie Upper Elementary School.  Ms. Blan works closely 
with Ms. Angie Burris R. N., who has taught this for the past thirteen years.  

This is a special lesson concerning the emotional and physical growth and development of 
early adolescents with an emphasis on personal hygiene practices. 

The program is entitled “Always Changing 5th grade Puberty Education”.  If you would 
like to preview the content of the program, it can be found at www.pgschoolprograms.com.  

I recommend Guthrie Public Schools approve the Growth and Development Presentation 
for our 2015 – 2016 Fifth Grade Students. 

44

http://www.pgschoolprograms.com/


45



 

1 

802 East Vilas 
Guthrie, OK  73044 
405-282-5959 – Phone 
405-282-5963 - Fax 

Guthrie Public Schools 
Technology Department 

Memo 
To:  Board of Education 

From: Dee Benson  

Date: April 5, 2016 

Re:  Technology Plan 

Please contact me if you have any questions.  My cell number is 405-202-
7409 or email dee.benson@guthrieps.net. 

This is the same plan that was approved last year with updated dates and 
additions of software we are using. 

46



 
 
 
 

GUTHRIE 
PUBLIC 

SCHOOLS 
 
 

TECHNOLOGY PLAN 
 
 

2016-2019 
 
 

 
“Staking a Claim in our Children’s Future” 

47



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     2 

 

Executive Summary 
 
The effective use of technology in education is paramount to our successful movement 
into the twenty-first century, making it essential that we provide our students, staff, and 
community with ample opportunities to integrate technology into their learning 
experiences.  Implementation of technology into the curriculum can help us in this quest 
by offering many new revolutionary tools that are changing the face of the educational 
process and the ways we are able to access information.  This transformational power of 
technology, together with the help of parents, staff and administrators, will better equip 
our graduating seniors to enter the technology-based workplace and to be more 
responsible, effective, participants in society. 
 
In today’s global environment, technological competence parallels the ability to read.  
Successful integration of technology into the curriculum will result in students with 
improved achievement and higher test scores; improved student attitude, enthusiasm, and 
engagement; richer classroom content; improved student retention and job placement 
rates. 
 
Technology helps teachers improve their classroom practices by expanding their 
opportunities for training and by fostering interaction with other teachers and 
professionals.  Technology used as an administrative and management tool, enables 
principals and superintendents to effectively save money, streamline operations, and 
monitor student progress.  Technology offers new and exciting ways for parents to 
increase their involvement in their children’s education. 
 
On the whole, Guthrie Schools are beginning to incorporate technology into the 
curriculum.  Technology purchases are determined by long-term goals, controlled by 
budget constraints, and made with the direction and guidance of a comprehensive, 
District-wide technology plan.   
 
The technology plan presents specific recommendations for the development of a 
comprehensive educational network of information resources.  The plan recommends 
diverse educational technologies and provides wide and equal access for students and 
staff. 

48



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     3 

 
Vision Statement 
 

We envision technology as an effective and necessary tool, capable of enhancing both the 

communication ability and productivity of our students, staff and parents.  Guthrie 

students must be competitive in an ever-changing world.  The opportunity to develop 

technological proficiency will empower Guthrie Public Schools to: 

 

• Create a global, diverse, and enriched learning experience 

• Enable students, parents, and staff to become lifelong learners 

• Enable students to become active participants in our information-based society 

• Enhance problem solving skills in all areas of the educational environment 

• Strengthen the partnership among students, home, school, and community 

 

Mission Statement 
“It is the mission of the Guthrie Public Schools to empower all students with the tools 

necessary to become productive members of society through a cooperative effort between 

the student, home, school, and community.” 

 

Technology will be utilized to support curriculum, to provide integrated opportunities for 

learning, and to prepare the student for lifelong global learning in a rapidly changing 

technological society.  Guthrie Public Schools must provide up-to-date technology so that 

the following Priority Academic Student Skills (PASS) can be effectively addressed. 

   

The student technology objectives are: 

• Operation of the computer 
• Use of application software as a tool 
• Problem-solving and research skills 
• Use of telecommunications 
• Technology awareness 
• Understanding of ethical and legal issues in technology 
• Appropriate technology skills necessary for success 

49



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     4 

 

Guthrie Public Schools must provide up-to-date technology so teachers and staff can: 

• Improve instructional strategies to increase student achievement 
• Communicate student progress accurately and efficiently 
• Improve professional skills 
• Network with other professionals to share skills and resources 
• Demonstrate dimensions of technology-based learning to promote student 

achievement and staff productivity 
• Promote parental and community involvement 
 
 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Priority Goals 
 
Administrative Goals 
 
I. All administrators and support staff will have electronic access at any time to 
available administrative and instructional technologies. 
 
II. The District will continue to acquire the latest hardware, software, and improved 
communication technology to enhance administrative efficiency in all schools. 
 
III. The District will provide professional development to administrators and related 
support personnel on the implementation of the latest administrative and instructional 
technologies. 
 
 
Instructional Goals 
 
I. The District will provide all students and teachers access at any time from any 
place in the school to available instructional technologies. 
 
II. The District will continue to acquire hardware which meets or exceeds state 
standards for instructional technologies. 
 
III. The District will continue to acquire instructional software and other media to 
support the use of instructional technology. 

50



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     5 

 
IV. The District will coordinate the involvement of personnel and technology 
facilities in the community for the purpose of incorporating new technologies into 
instruction. 
 
V. The District will utilize human resources within the system to support the 
implementation of instructional technology 
 
VI. The District will acquire improved communication technology to support the 
instructional process. 
 
VII. The District will acquire improved technology to increase parental involvement 
and to promote better home/school communication. 
 
VIII. The District will revise curriculum to emphasize the application of technology in 
all subject areas.  
 
IX. The District will support and collaborate with community service agencies to 
expand the existing adult literacy programs. 
 
Professional Development Technology Goal 
 
The District will provide professional development to teachers and other staff on the 
effective implementation of new technology in education. 

 
 

Plans to Evaluate the Successes and/or Failures of 
Implementation 
 
• Collect data on usage and technical difficulties in the use of distance learning 

programs.  Adjust professional development and follow-up as needed. 
 
• Assess individual school requests for additional hardware equipment and acquisitions 

to determine cost effectiveness and consistency with system-wide technology goals. 
 
• Assess acquisitions for hardware that would take into account students with special 

needs, particularly those who are vision, hearing, orthopedic, mentally, or physically 
challenged. 

 
• Analyze assessment forms returned from teachers on instructional software currently 

being used by teachers and adjust professional development accordingly. 
 

51



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     6 

• Report to parents and community on instructional software currently being used and 
assessed by teachers. 

 
• Survey schools as to parental/community involvement in technology currently being 

implemented at individual school sites. 
 
• Assess individual school programs for the effective and beneficial involvement with 

business, industry, and other community leaders. 
 
• Assess impact of grants, business, and corporate financial support to instruction in the 

school system and make recommendations to the Board for the continued solicitation 
of such funds. 

 
• Review the standards policy for programming on the District’s local cable public 

access channel. 
 
• Assess the curriculum as part of the annual revision process to ensure appropriate 

application of technology in the total curriculum. 
 
• Assess the effective implementation of the Priority Academic Student Skills (PASS) 

Instructional Technology guidelines by building-level personnel and suggest 
appropriate revision. 

 
• Survey teachers to determine how Internet access has impacted the curriculum for 

their appropriate grade or subject level and revise guidelines for accessing on-line 
services as needed. 

 
• Complete data collection on how teachers have incorporated word processing 

applications on the computer as a tool for teaching writing in all curriculum areas and 
expand the use of computers as a writing tool. 

 
• Appraise the formal technology training offered through Professional Development 

and its effectiveness in the instructional process. 
 
• Collect data of in-service training by technology specialists to determine building-

level emphasis on integrating technology into the school curriculum. 
 
• Survey parents as to the improvement of school/community communication. 
 

52



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     7 

Impact on Curriculum, Instruction, and Evaluation 
 

Through the use of advanced computing and telecommunications technology, learning 

can be qualitatively different.  The process of learning in the classroom can become 

significantly richer as students have access to new and different types of information.  

Students can then in turn manipulate that information on the computer through graphic 

displays and can communicate their findings in a variety of media to their teachers, 

students in the next classroom, or students around the world.   

 

The impact of the plan will be observed by: 
 

1. Increased teacher knowledge and skill in use of technology within curriculum 

development 

 

Learning to utilize multimedia technology is an important tool in learning to read and 

write.  Students today receive, and will increasingly receive, information from various 

types of visual media.  Using multimedia as a learning tool is much more than giving 

students a camera and shooting pictures or operating a computer.  Technical applications 

must be taught as part of an existing subject so students understand how technology can 

be a tool that makes them a more productive and powerful person in any subject area. 

53



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     8 

 

2. Renewed teacher commitment and enthusiasm to teaching and instruction 

 

The plan provides teachers with the necessary knowledge and skills to infuse technology 

into their classrooms.  The most effective and efficient approach to improving instruction 

is to enhance the skills of the teachers, support them in professional development, and 

provide them with the necessary tools.   

 

3. Expanded knowledge of, and access to, educational resources 

 

Through planned training, the plan will promote a desire to use technology and provide 

the tools to meet the need.  They will discover techniques for integrating Internet 

resources into instruction.  Teachers will have immediate access to experts and special 

interest on-line discussion groups.  The possibilities of engaging their students in “real 

world” learning projects and supplementing class lectures with multimedia presentations 

and online resources will tailor student learning opportunities more specifically to each 

individual student. 

 

4. Improved curriculum and instruction with appropriate student assessment 

Properly used, technology can enhance the achievement of all students.  Among the 

attractions of computer assisted instruction are its ability to individualize instruction and 

to provide instant feedback.  Since students are able to control the pace at which they 

proceed through their exercises and activities, they are neither held back nor left behind 

by their peers.  Multimedia technology expands the possibilities for more comprehensive 

student assignments that require students’ active participation and application of 

knowledge.  The use of technology in the classroom improves students’ motivation and 

attitudes about themselves and about learning.  Students are found to be challenged, 

engaged, and more independent when using technology. 

54



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     9 

 

5. More relevant curriculum to keep students in school  

 

Students are no longer restricted to writing paper-and-pencil essays.  They can create 

multimedia presentations using computers to combine text, graphs, charts, digital images, 

photographs, slides, real-time video, and sound.  No longer do class projects have to be 

static—they can be dynamic through the use of technology.  Video and audio 

technologies bring material to life, enhancing students’ ability to remember and 

understand what they see and hear.  By incorporating pictures, sound, and animation in 

classroom activities, multimedia significantly enhances student recall of basic facts, as 

well as their understanding of complex systems.   

 

Technology is particularly valuable in improving student writing.  For example, the ease 

with which students can edit their written work using word-processing, makes them more 

willing to do so, which in turn improves the quality of their writing. 

 

6. Expanded knowledge about teacher-led implementation of technologies and 

“best-teacher practices” 

 

The computer must be recognized as an effective teaching tool, which assists the 

educator, as well as the student.  Software offers students individualized learning.  While 

students progress on a subject at their own pace, those who begin to fall behind can 

receive proper interpersonal attention from the instructor.  The computer allows the 

teacher to concentrate on interaction and individualized assistance.  As an assessment 

tool, technology yields meaningful information, on demand, about students’ progress and 

accomplishments and provides a medium for its storage. 

55



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     10 

 

Current environment 
 
Presently the Guthrie Public School System network is comprised of 13 sites connected 
by a 1GB fiber WAN.  These sites are connected to the Internet by a 500 MB circuit 
provided by Cox Communications.  All District computers have access to the Internet. 
 
The District has consolidated all servers into the one location to save time and money.   
 
100% of classrooms have at least one computer. 
 
Every classroom in the District is wired for connection to the Internet. 
 
Technology Goals 

1. Provide at least 1 modern computer for every classroom 
2. Continue to provide information to the public and staff through an Internet and an 

Intranet presence.  
3. Provide a mobile lab at the Junior High for teachers to schedule for class use. 
4. Provide a mobile lab at each elementary for teachers to schedule for class use. 
5. Establish a program of regular technology staff development training for all 

teachers and administrators in the district. 
6. Establish a full schedule of Distance Learning Classes for both students and staff. 
7. Establish a schedule for upgrading and replacing computers and servers. 
8. Upgrade and replace aging equipment on a regular basis. 

56



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     11 

Minimum Required Components 
 

1. Strategies for improving academic achievement and teacher effectiveness – 

a. Our students are developing technology skills at an earlier age.  
Consequently they expect to be taught with technology.  In order for this 
teaching to take place we must provide the infrastructure to support all 
types of technology.  Guthrie has taken the first step by securing a 1GB 
wide area network connection between all sites.  This enables the District 
to consolidate services in a central location and to provide the highest 
degree of uptime possible to our users.  Once teachers and students learn 
that the technology is reliable, they are using the skills that they have 
learned from classroom and professional development to integrate 
technology into every lesson.  Ed Tech funds will be used to constantly 
expand and upgrade the infrastructure used by the staff and students.  

2. Goals – 

a. By 2016, all students will reach high standards, at a minimum attaining 
proficiency or better in reading/language arts and mathematics. 

i. Increase passage rate on 3rd grade reading test to 100 percent. 

1. Purchase assessment/screening materials/software to 
monitor student’s progress & drive instruction. 

2. Purchase computers and tablets at school sites. 

b. All Limited English Proficient students will become proficient in English 
and reach high academic standards, at a minimum attaining proficiency or 
better in reading/language arts and mathematics. 

i. Forty percent (40%) of all K-12 limited-English-proficient (LEP) 
students enrolled will show progress in attaining English 
proficiency (increasing one or more levels of proficiency 
established by the state). 

ii. Ten percent (10%) of all K-12 LEP students enrolled will attain 
English proficiency (exiting out of ESL program). 

iii. Ten percent (10%) of K-12 LEP students will be at or above 
proficient in mathematics on the State's assessment. 

1. Purchase ESL materials or supplemental instructional 
materials to teach LEP students. 

57



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     12 

c. All students will be taught by highly qualified teachers 

1. On-line professional development in the core academic 
content area. 

d. All students will be educated in learning environments that are safe, drug-
free, and conducive to learning. 

1. Provide all teachers ongoing professional development 
opportunities on safe and healthy school issues (e.g. Safe 
and Healthy School Conference, Safe School Summit, 
monthly video conferences, etc. 

e. All students will graduate from high school. 

i. Increase graduation rate by 5%. 

1. Purchase supplemental instructional software and hardware 
for summer enrichment programs in reading/language 
arts/math. 

3. Steps to increase accessibility – 

a. Guthrie Public Schools is a 21st Century Learning Center.  Therefore, we 
provide an after school care program for our students as well as a tutoring 
and enhancement program.  Ed Tech funds will be used to provide 
materials for both of these programs as well as to provide the availability 
of technology outside of the regular school day.  Both of these programs 
are used to increase the education of students in the high need and high 
poverty areas of the District.   

b. Guthrie Public Schools provides a summer school program for all Title I 
students.  The Junior High has implemented a required summer school for 
all students who have failed a class the previous school year.  Students use 
technology to complete lessons online which will help to bring them up to 
grade level in all curriculum areas. 

c. Teachers are provided training in the use of technology to assist students 
and parents in the educational success of all students. 

4. Promotion of curricula and teaching strategies that integrate technology  

a. All software and materials used in the District must be based on 
scientifically proven research and methods.  Students are assessed and 
monitored throughout the school year.  Students who are not making 
adequate progress are remediated in order to bring them up to the current 
standards of performance. 

 

58



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     13 

5. Professional Development  

a. Professional development will be offered on both a group and individual 
basis.  All staff will be trained in the use of technology to properly assess 
and monitor the progress of their students.  Technology is an important 
tool in the management of today’s classroom. 

b. Staff will have various opportunities for online training associated with the 
various software programs used in the District. 

c. Staff Development days will be scheduled to provide staff with ideas and 
strategies that will help them to effectively integrate technology into their 
everyday lessons. 

6. Technology type and costs 

a. In order to ensure the highest quality and uptime, the Guthrie Public 
Schools system has adopted a set of hardware standards.  These standards 
help to insure the interoperability of all components within our system. 

b. The District has a technology budget of $250,000 which funds the upkeep 
and repair of all current equipment.  

7. Coordination with other resources 

a. All technology related purchases in the District must be approved by the 
Technology Department.  This ensures that the equipment is compatible 
with our existing environment and that we have the equipment and 
training necessary to use the new technology.  

8. Integration of technology with curricula and instruction 

a. Using the strategies outlined under promotion of curricula and teaching 
strategies that integrate technology and professional development the 
District will conduct ongoing training for the integration of technology 
into all areas of curricula and instruction.  Training will begin before 
school starts and continue throughout the school year.  All teachers are 
currently expected to integrate technology into their lessons at every 
opportunity. 

59



 
Guthrie Public Schools Technology Plan     14 

 

9. Innovative delivery strategies  

a. Students will be offered the opportunity to participate in distance learning 
classes that will enhance their education.  These classes will be offered as 
both college credit and HS credit courses.  Distance learning classes will 
be expanded to offer opportunities for students and staff to enhance their 
educational experience without leaving the District. 

b. Students will have the opportunity to participate in virtual learning courses 
through the Edgenuity program. 

10. Parental involvement 

a. Parental involvement will be enhanced through the use of our District web 
site.  All information that is available in printed form will be available for 
download from the school web site.  Teachers are being trained in 
producing class web pages to aid parents in the support of their child’s 
education. 

b. The District has implemented the School Messenger Suite.  This will 
allow parent communication for those parents who do not have access to 
the Internet. 

11. Collaboration with adult literacy service providers 

a. The Guthrie Public School District is an adult literacy provider.  We offer 
adult literacy courses in the evening as well as through our 21st Century 
program.  We work with the community library to provide literacy 
services to the entire community. 

12. Accountability measures  

a. Success of these programs will be monitored through the use of testing 
scores and the District report card. 

13. Supporting resources 

a. NWEA - MAPS 

b. Read Naturally 

c. ALCA 

d. Voyager Learning 

e. Study Island 

f. Edgenuity 

60



 

1 

802 East Vilas 
Guthrie, OK  73044 
405-282-5959 – Phone 
405-282-5963 – Fax 

Guthrie Public Schools 
Technology Department 

Memo 
To:  Board of Education 

From: Dee Benson, Director of Technology 

Date: April 5, 2016 

Re:  2016-2017 Erate 

It is time to approve the contracts for next years Erate.  Erate will pay 80% of 
the eligible costs and we are responsible for the ineligible costs and the 
remaining 20% of the cost.  In the case of Internet and WAN cost the OUSF 
program will cover the 20% not paid by Erate.  The district costs are limited 
to fees and surcharges. 

Cost for Internet decreased $1,704, Wide Area Network cost decreased 
$52,560, basic phone costs decreased $107 per year, and cell phone cost 
increased $1,701.48 

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me anytime. 

Office – 282-5959 

Cell – 202-7409 

Email – dee.benson@guthrieps.net 

61



Vendor Category Description Total Cost Ineligible Erate Eligible Erate Paid OUSF Estimate District Paid

COX 1 Phone $9,534.00 $4,767.00 $4,767.00 $3,813.60 $5,720.40
WAN Services $159,600.00 $159,600.00 $127,680.00 $31,920.00 $0.00
Internet $46,296.00 $46,296.00 $37,036.80 $3,931.20 $5,328.00

AT&T 1 Wireless Phone Service $23,400.00 $11,700.00 $11,700.00 $9,360.00 $14,040.00

$25,088.40Category 1 Total District Cost

Year 19 Erate Contracts - Category 1

62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 1 of 7 
 
 

      
ADMINISTRATION OF FEDERAL PROGRAMS 

 
The district participates in a variety of federal programs and receives funding (“Awards”) through those 
programs.  All district representatives will comply with all regulatory guidance and laws applicable to the 
individual programs. 
 
The district will regularly monitor its compliance efforts and make appropriate information available to the 
federal awarding agency (“FAA”), state pass-through entity (“State Entity”), inspectors general, and/or US 
comptroller.  The district will make required performance reports using OMB approved information 
collections reports. 
 
 
Audits 

 
If the district expends $750,000 or more in federal awards during the fiscal year, it will have an 
audit conducted. 
 

 
Employee Compensation 
 

Regardless of the source of the funds, employees are paid pursuant to the district’s salary schedule 
for all work performed.  If personnel costs are paid with Awards, those costs will be calculated as 
wages and fringe benefits permitted in 2 C.F.R. § 200.431 for services rendered during the relevant 
time period.   
 
Employees who are paid with Award funds – in whole or in part - must maintain adequate records 
documenting the time spent performing each set of duties so that their compensation can be 
correctly allocated to the Award.  2 C.F.R. § 200.430 
 
 

Travel and Conference Expenses 
 

The district will follow its standard travel reimbursement and professional development policies 
and procedures when spending Award funds, except when a federal requirement is more stringent, 
in which case the district will adhere to the more stringent requirement.  Any travel, conference / 
professional development participation and expenses will be reasonable, necessary, and related to 
the federal program tied to the Award. 
 
 

Conflict of Interest / Mandatory Disclosure Regarding Contracting 
  

The district will make written disclosure of any potential conflict of interest to the FAA or State 
Entity in accordance with the FAA’s policy. 
 
All members of the board are expected to maintain high ethical standards and use good judgment 
in conducting school business.  Members are also required to follow the same standards of 

80



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 2 of 7 
 
 

professional conduct required of all district employees.  Board members specifically agree to 
refrain from using their position for any unfair personal or business advantage or engaging in any 
action which gives the appearance of such misconduct.  Any board member who violates this policy 
will be referred to the Oklahoma State Ethics Commission. 
 
Business Arrangements and Financial Transactions  
 
All board members are required to familiarize themselves with and comply with all the 
requirements of OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 5-124.   
 
As required by law, the district will not contract with any member of the board or any company, 
individual or business concern in which any member of the board is directly or indirectly 
interested.  A member of the board is considered to be interested in any contract with a company, 
individual or business concern if the member of the board or any member of the immediate family 
(including a partner) of the member of the board owns any substantial interest in the same, or if an 
organization employs or is about to employ one of these parties.  The only exceptions will be those 
allowed by OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 5-124.  
 
If a contract is allowed by an exception listed in OKLA. STAT. tit. 70 § 5-124, then the board will 
not give special consideration to any company based on its affiliation with a board member or a 
board member’s family or partner.  If the board is seeking to conduct business with a company 
affiliated with a board member (or a board member’s family member or partner) that member will 
abstain from the contracting process unless a statutory exception applies.   
 
Gifts 
 
Board members may not seek or accept gifts, payments, services, entertainment, travel, valuable 
privileges, etc. from individuals or vendors who do business or seek to do business with the district, 
although board members may accept common courtesies such as meals and promotional items as 
are customarily exchanged in the normal course of business.  These courtesies must be of nominal 
value only.  Board members are expected to use good judgment in accepting such courtesies and 
must avoid any conflict of interest or even the appearance of impropriety. 
 
Reporting Misconduct 
 
In the event a board member engages in misconduct such as fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations, 
the board president, or the vice president if the president is the board member engaging in the 
misconduct, will report the violation to the FAA or State Entity in order to help prevent or prosecute 
waste, fraud, and abuse.   
 

  
Financial Management Procedures 
 

Internal Controls 
 
The Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer is responsible for implementing appropriate 
internal controls over Award funds which are consistent with 2 C.F.R. Part 200 Subpart E.  This 

81



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 3 of 7 
 
 

includes, but is not limited to, reviewing and comparing Awards, budgets, and allocations to 
determine whether the Awards are being expended appropriately and in compliance with relevant 
guidelines. The Director of Federal Programs is responsible for taking prompt action if 
noncompliance is discovered.  The Director of Federal Programs is also required to take reasonable 
measures to safeguard protected personally identifiable and protected information. 
 
General Recordkeeping 
 
The district will expend all Awards and account for those Awards in accordance with all applicable 
laws and regulations.  The Director of Federal Programs is responsible for maintaining appropriate 
records, documentation, and oversight related to all Awards.  This includes, but is not limited to 
the following: 
 

 information to prepare all required reports 
 
 compliance documentation to establish conformity with federal statutes, 

regulations, and the specific terms and conditions of an Award 
 
 proof of the appropriate expenditure of Awards 
 
 records of receipt / expenditure of Awards, including the federal program under 

which the Award was made, any applicable CFDA number, Award identification 
number and year, name of the FAA, and name of any applicable State Entity 

 
 accurate, current, and complete disclosure of the financial results of all Awards in 

accordance with current OMB standards and the terms of the Award 
 
 source documents showing the application for funds, authorizations, obligations, 

unobligated balances, assets, expenditures, and income and interest related to an 
Award 

 
 evidence that all Award funds, property, and other assets have been safeguarded 

and are used solely for authorized purposes   
 
 a comparison of Award expenditures and budgets  
 
 the district’s written procedures to minimize the elapsed time between the transfer 

of funds and disbursement by the district, when possible, to receive funds in 
advance from the FAA   

 
 the district’s written procedures for determining the allowability of costs in 

accordance with 2 CFR part 200 subpart E and the terms and conditions of the 
Award 

 
 
 
 

82



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 4 of 7 
 
 

Records Retention Timeline 
 

The district will maintain all records pertinent to any Awards it receives.  All documents 
will be maintained a minimum of 3 years from the date of submission of the final 
expenditure report OR 3 years from the date of the quarterly or annual financial report 
UNLESS there are pending claims related to project OR the FAA has notified the district 
the records should be maintained longer OR the records have been transferred to or are 
maintained by the FAA or State Entity.  The district will retain records for real property 
and equipment maintained for 3 years after final disposition.   
  

Interest  
 
The District Treasurer is responsible for maintaining advance Award payments in an interest 
bearing account unless: 
 

 the district receives less than $120,000 in Awards per year 
 the district would earn less than $500 per year in interest on federal cash balances 
 the depository would require an unfeasible minimum balance 
 the banking system prohibits interest bearing accounts 

 
The Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer is responsible for retaining up to $500 per 
year of interest earned on Awards for the district to utilize for administrative expenses.  The 
Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer is responsible for remitting any additional earned 
interest to the Department of Health and Human Services Payment Management System. 
 
Budgeting 
 
The Director of Federal Programs is responsible for regularly reviewing budgets and expenses and 
making appropriate reports and requests for deviations in the budget or project scope. 
 
Real Property, Equipment, and Supplies 
 
The district will appropriately insure all real property, equipment, and supplies (“Property”) 
acquired or improved with Awards, and will take reasonable steps to safeguard and adequately 
maintain the Property.  All Property will be labeled.   
 
The district will not encumber Property acquired or improved with an Award without prior approval 
from the FAA. 
 
The district will maintain appropriate records of the Property. These records will include, as 
applicable, a description, serial/identification number, source of funding (including the Federal 
Award Identification Number), name of title holder, acquisition date, cost, percentage of federal 
participation in the project’s cost, location, use and condition, disposition data (including date of 
disposal and sale price). 
 

83



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 5 of 7 
 
 

The district will conduct an inventory of Property at least every 2 years, and will review/update the 
inventory annually.  The district will include the following information on the inventory: fund 
source, description, serial number, acquisition date, acquisition cost, and location. 
 
The district will use the Property as long as needed, and may make the Property available for other 
federal projects as long as this will not disrupt the intended use. 
 
Once the Property is no longer needed, it will be disposed of in accordance with current federal 
standards.   
 
Property purchased for a Title I, Part A Targeted Assistance program will be reserved only for 
identified students.   

 
 
General Procurement Standards and Vendor Selection 
 

General Standards 
 
The district will follow its standard procurement policies and procedures when spending Award 
funds, except when a federal requirement is more stringent, in which case the district will adhere 
to the more stringent requirement.  The Assistant Superintendent/Chief Financial Officer is 
responsible for overseeing that contractors perform in accordance with the terms of their contracts 
/ purchase orders. 
 
Any employee who has oversight or compliance responsibilities for administering an Award will 
comply with the district’s stated conflict of interest policy above. 
 
The district will use processes and analysis designed to avoid acquiring unnecessary and duplicative 
items and will actively attempt to make economical purchases with Award funds.  This may 
include, when appropriate, consideration of leases, shared service agreements, use of federal excess 
and surplus property, and value engineering clauses in construction contracts. 
 
The district will only award contracts to responsible contractors possessing the ability to 
successfully perform.  In determining whether a contractor is a responsible contractor, the district 
will consider integrity, compliance with public policy, record of past performance, and financial 
and technical resources. 
 
The district will maintain adequate records detailing the history of procurement, including the 
rationale for the procurement method, selection of the contract type, contractor selection or 
rejection, and the basis for the contract price for all Awards. 
 
In procurement with Awards, the district will only use time and material type contracts after 
determining that no other contract is suitable and if the contract includes a ceiling price that the 
contractor exceeds at its own risk.  If such a contract is used, the district will utilize extra oversight 
on the project. 
 

84



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 6 of 7 
 
 

The district will utilize good practices and sound business judgment to settle all procurement issues 
related to Awards, including source evaluations, protests, disputes, and claims. 
 
Procurement Methods 
 
For procurement processes with Award funds, the district will make technical specifications on 
proposed procurements available to the FAA or State Entity if requested.   
 
All contracts connected with an Award will comply with 2 C.F.R. §200.326. 
 
For all procurements using funds from an Award, the district will utilize one of the procurement 
methods identified below: 
 
 Micro-purchase will be utilized for purchases under $3,500 (or $2,000 if the purchase is 

subject to the Davis-Bacon Act).  The district will attempt to distribute these purchases 
equitably among qualified suppliers, and the district will not solicit competitive quotations 
if the district believes a purchase price is reasonable.   

 
 Small purchase procedures will be utilized for purchases under the Simplified Acquisition 

Threshold ($150,000).  When utilizing this procurement method the district will obtain 
quotes from an adequate number of qualified sources. 

 
 Sealed bids will be utilized when complete, adequate, and realistic specifications are 

available, multiple bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the business and 
the procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price and the successful bidder can be made 
principally on the basis of price.  When utilizing this procurement method, the district will 
timely and publicly issue the invitation for bids - including adequate information about the 
project.  All the bids will be publicly opened as prescribed in the invitation for bids, and 
the contract will be awarded in writing to the lowest responsible bidder.  If a sealed bid is 
rejected, the district will document the reason for the rejection. 

 
 Competitive proposals will be utilized when other procurement methods are not 

appropriate.  The first step of the competitive proposal process is getting an independent 
estimate.  When utilizing this procurement method, the district will publicize the evaluation 
factors and their relative importance to an adequate number of qualified sources and will 
consider all responses.  The district will use an established, written method for conducting 
technical evaluations of the proposals (including receiving independent estimates before 
receiving bids or proposals) and award the project to the proposal which is most 
advantageous to the district.   

 
 The district may also use competitive proposals for qualifications-based procurement of 

architectural/engineering (A/E) services to award proposals to the most qualified 
competitor – subject to fair and reasonable compensation.  The district will not use this 
type of procurement to purchase other types of services through A/E firms. 

 
 Noncompetitive proposals will be utilized when an item is only available from a single 

source, there is an urgent situation which precludes the delays associated with competitive 

85



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                         C-27 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 7 of 7 
 
 

selection, the FAA or State Entity has expressly authorized this method, or solicitation 
from multiple sources has yielded inadequate competition.   

 
 Negotiating Profit will be negotiated as a separate element of the price for each contract if 

there is no price competition and in all cases where cost analysis is performed.   
 
 For all procurements using funds from an Award, the district: 
 

 will not utilize a cost plus a percentage of cost or percentage of construction cost method 
of contracting 

 
 will not accept bids or proposals from a contractor that develops or drafts specifications, 

requirements, statements of work, invitations for bids, or similar documents 
 
 will not unnecessarily restrict bidders to a specific geographic area 
 
 will ensure that if a list of prequalified persons, firms or products are used, that the list is 

current and includes enough qualified sources to ensure maximum open and free 
competition   

 
 will take appropriate affirmative steps to ensure that small and minority businesses, 

women’s business enterprises, and labor surplus area firms (“target groups”) are included 
in its contracting process, including: 

 
 including target groups on the solicitation list and ensure that these target groups 

are solicited whenever they are potential sources 
 
 dividing total requirements, if economically feasible, to permit maximum 

participation by target groups 
 
 establishing delivery schedules, when possible, which encourage target groups to 

participate 
 
 utilizing groups which interface with the target groups (e.g., Small Business 

Administration, Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of 
Commerce, etc.) 

 
 requiring the prime contractor, if using subcontracts, to take these same affirmative 

steps to include target groups 
 
 ensuring the district and all its contractors comply with the with § 6002 of the Solid 

Waste Disposal Act, including procuring only items which contain the highest 
percentage of recovered materials practicable for purchases over $10,000, 
procuring solid waste management services which maximize energy and resource 
recovery, and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procuring 
recovered materials identified in EPA guidelines. 

 

86



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                      C-27A 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 1 of 4 
 
 

          
FEDERAL PROGRAMS COMPLAINT POLICY 

 
  
 
The district receives federal funds and the board has established this policy to help ensure compliance with federal 
grant requirements.  Any student, parent, community member or employee who believes the district has violated any 
regulation connected with the expenditure of federal funds should notify the district using the process outlined in this 
policy.  This policy specifically covers, but is not limited to, complaints related to the following issues: 
 

▪ Use of Title I funds 
 
▪ Flexible Learning Program  
 
▪ Parental involvement 
 
▪ Private school access to federal funds 
 
▪ Homeless student enrollment, transportation and barriers to education 
 
 Teacher and principal training and recruiting 
 
 Math and science partnerships 
 
 Enhancing education with technology 
 
 English language acquisition 
 
 Safe and drug free schools 
 
 Community learning centers 
 
 Innovative programs 
 
 Small, rural, and/or low-income school programs 

 
Definitions 
 
Grievance Coordinator:  
 

The person designated to process complaints, moderate and keep records during hearings.  The grievance 
coordinator is: 
 
Director of Federal Programs 
Guthrie Public Schools 
802 East Vilas Avenue 
Guthrie, OK  73044 

  
 
 
 

87



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                      C-27A 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 2 of 4 
 
 

 
Grievant:   
 

The person making the complaint.   
 
Respondent:   
 

The person alleged to be responsible for the improper activity contained in the complaint.  The term may be 
used to designate persons with responsibility for a particular action or those persons with supervisory 
responsibility for procedures and policies in those areas covered in the complaint. 

 
Day:   
 

Day means a working day when the district’s main administrative offices are open.  The calculation of days 
shall exclude Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays. 

 
Procedural Steps 
 
Step 1: 
 

Address the problem informally.  Prior to filing a written complaint, individuals are encouraged to visit with 
the responsible party or a school administrator and make reasonable efforts to resolve the problem.  School 
employees are required to participate in this process. 

 
Step 2: 
 

If the problem was not resolved informally, or if a parent, student or patron believes informal resolution is 
not advisable, the grievant may submit a complaint to the grievance coordinator on the attached form.  The 
form must contain all the requested information.   
 
The grievance coordinator will conduct an impartial investigation within ten (10) days of receipt of the 
complaint (or as soon as reasonably possible given the circumstances, but not more than thirty (30) days).  
The investigation will include, but not be limited to, interviewing the grievant, respondent, and witnesses, 
and reviewing relevant documents.  The grievance coordinator will specifically ask the respondent to confirm 
or deny facts, accept or reject the grievant’s requested action, and outline alternatives.  
  
After the investigation, the grievance coordinator will prepare a written decision regarding the results of the 
investigation.  The decision will be mailed to the grievant, respondent, and superintendent within five (5) 
days of the conclusion of the investigation.   

 
Step 3: 
 

If either the grievant or respondent are dissatisfied with the step 2 decision, he or she may appeal.  The 
grievance coordinator must receive a written notice of appeal within five (5) days of the appealing party’s 
receipt of the step 2 decision or the matter is deemed resolved. The appeal notice must include a specific 
statement explaining the basis for the appeal. 
 
Within five (5) days of receipt of a timely appeal, the grievance coordinator will refer the matter to the 
superintendent (or other impartial individual if the superintendent is the respondent). 
 
The superintendent (or other impartial individual if the superintendent is the respondent) will conduct a 
hearing within ten (10) days of his/her receipt of the appeal.  The grievant, respondent and grievance 

88



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                      C-27A 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 3 of 4 
 
 

coordinator will all be invited to attend the appeal hearing, and relevant employees are required to participate 
in this process. 
 
At the hearing, the superintendent (or other impartial individual if the superintendent is the respondent) will 
review the information collected through the investigation and may ask for additional oral or written evidence 
from the parties and any other individual he/she deems relevant.  The grievance coordinator will make 
arrangements to audiotape any oral evidence presented.   
 
After the investigation, the superintendent (or other impartial individual if the superintendent is the 
respondent) will prepare a written decision regarding his/her findings.  The decision will be mailed to the 
grievant, respondent, and grievance coordinator within five (5) days of the conclusion of the appeal hearing.   

 
Step 4: 
 

If either the grievant or respondent are dissatisfied with the step 3 decision, he or she may appeal.  The 
grievance coordinator must receive a written notice of appeal within five (5) days of the appealing party’s 
receipt of the step 3 decision or the matter is deemed resolved. The appeal notice must include a specific 
statement explaining the basis for the appeal. 
 
Within five (5) days of receipt of a timely appeal, the grievance coordinator will notify the board of education 
clerk.  The board will conduct a hearing within thirty (30) days of the clerk’s receipt of the appeal.  The 
grievant, respondent and grievance coordinator will all be invited to attend the appeal hearing, and relevant 
employees are required to participate in this process. 
 
At the hearing, the board may ask for oral and written evidence to be presented by both parties.  The board 
clerk will make arrangements to audiotape any oral evidence presented.   
 
After the hearing, the board clerk will prepare a written decision regarding the board’s findings.  The decision 
will be mailed to the grievant, respondent, grievance coordinator, and general counsel of the Oklahoma State 
Department of Education within five (5) days of the conclusion of the appeal hearing.  The board’s decision 
may be appealed by submitting a request to the Oklahoma State Department of Education’s general counsel 
within thirty-five (35) days of the board hearing. 

 
General Provisions 
 
Extension of time:   
 

Any time limits set by these procedures may be extended by mutual consent of the parties involved, although 
the total number of days from the date the complaint is filed until the Board of Education issues a final 
decision shall not exceed one hundred twenty (120) days. 

 
Confidentiality of Records:   
 

Complaint records will remain confidential, to the extent allowed by law, unless permission is given by the 
parties involved to release such information.  All complaint records will be kept separate from any other 
records of the district.  No complaint record shall be entered in any personnel file unless adverse employment 
action is taken against an employee.  Complaint records shall be maintained on file for three years after 
complaint resolution. 

 
 
 
 

89



 
GUTHRIE BOARD OF EDUCATION                                                      C-27A 

      NEW POLICY PROPOSED 4-11-16 
 

 
Adoption Date:    Revision Date(s):                                                                               Page 4 of 4 
 
 

Representation:  
 

The grievant and the respondent may have a representative assist them through the grievance process and 
accompany them to any hearing. 

 
Retaliation:  
 

The district prohibits retaliation, intimidation, threats, or coercion related to any aspect of the grievance 
process, including but not limited to: making a complaint, testifying, assisting, appealing, or participating in 
any other proceeding or hearing.  The district will take steps to prevent retaliation.  These steps include 
notifying students and employees that they are protected from retaliation, making sure grievants know how 
to report future problems and making follow-up inquiries to see if there have been any new incidents.  If 
retaliation occurs, the district will take strong responsive action. 

 
Basis of Decision:  
 

At each step in the grievance procedure, the decision maker will take or recommend appropriate measures 
based on the facts taken as a whole, as revealed by the investigation and hearing, and the totality of the 
circumstances, such as the nature, extent, context and gravity of the activities or incidents. 

 

90



FOODSERVICE MANAGEMENT COMPANY REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL AND 
CONTRACT BETWEEN GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS, SFA, AND SOUTHWEST 

FOODSERVICE EXCELLENCE, FSMC 
FIFTH AMENDMENT 

 
 This Request for Proposal and Contract Amendment is made in consideration of the mutual 
covenants and Agreements contained herein by and between Guthrie Public School District, 
School Food Authority (SFA), and Southwest Foodservice Excellence, LLC, Food Service 
Management Company (FSMC), to amend the Foodservice Management Company Request for 
Proposal and Contract that was executed by SFA and FSMC and effective on July 1, 2016.  
 
The contract is amended as follows: 
 

1. “Effective Date” shall mean July 1, 2016.  

2. All other terms and Conditions of this Contract executed by SFA and FSMC remains the 

same.  

3. This Amendment is valid for the 2016-2017 school year. The contract and this Amendment 

shall terminate on June 30, 2017, and may be renewed for five (5) additional terms of one 

(1) year upon mutual agreement of SFA and FSMC.  

4. The amount of General and Administrative Expense Fee per Meal/Meal Equivalent is 

deleted and replaced with NO CHANGE. 

5. The amount of Management Fee per Meal/Meal Equivalent is deleted and replaced with       

NO CHANGE. 

 

The Amendment is executed by the Parties in their capacities as stated below. All parties 
represent and warrant that the persons signing this Amendment are authorized to bind the 
respective parties.  
 
Guthrie Public School District                      Southwest Foodservice Excellence, LLC 
 

   
_______________________________  ____________________________ 
By:                                 By: Mr. Dan Matello 
               President, SFE 
Position:_______________________ 
 
 
Date:__________________________   Date: March 18th, 2016 

91



92



93



Board of Education Personnel Reports
FMLA Request
Support: 1

Certified: 1

Leave of Absence Requst

Classification Certified

Name Teaching Assignment Leave of Abs NotesSite Effective Date:
Abbott, Kaylee Kindergarten LOACotteral 8/16/2016

Separation of Employment
Classification Certified

Name Site Teaching Assignment Reason for Separation Effective Date
Barker, Tara Junior High 8th Science 5/20/2016Retiring
Cronin, Martha High School Science 5/20/2016Retiring
Sieber, Joseph Junior High Technology Education 5/1/2016Retiring
Smith, Ty Junior High Creative Writing 8th Grade 5/20/2016Resigning
Turney, Melissa Fogarty Teacher Interventionist 5/20/2016Resigning
Wells, Cameron Junior High Band Director 5/20/2016Resigning

Classification Support

Name Site Teaching Assignment Reason for Separation Effective Date
Bertwell, Kathy Maintenance Facilities Assistant 6/30/2016Retiring
Miller, Ian Maintenance Custodian 4/1/2016Terminated
Nephew, Laverne Central Custodian 3/22/2016Terminated
Robinson, Connie Junior High Sp Ed Paraprofessional 5/20/2016Retiring
Thornton, Donna GUES Custodian 3/25/2016Resigning
Thornton, Bill Maintenance Maintenance 3/25/2016Resigning

Transfer of Position Report

Classification Support

Name Transfered  From Transfered To Replacing Tran sfer Date
Morrow, Ruby Custodian JH Custodian GUES Donna Thornton 4/4/2016

4/6/2016

94



95



96



 
Guthrie Public Schools 

Property Committee Meeting 
April 4, 2016 

5:00 p.m. 

 

Members present: Dr. Mike Simpson, Dennis Schulz, Doug Ogle, Jerry Gammill, Carmen 
Walters, Sharon Watts, Jennifer Bennett-Johnson, Terry Pennington, and Linda Skinner.  

Also in attendance: Shawn from The Stacy Group and an Engineer. 

 Superintendent Discussion: 
  -   Dr. Simpson discussed the different options available for updating the 
        HVAC at Central 
 
 Mr. Gammill spoke on the following items: 

  
 Expenditure Reports: 
           -   Summarized the expenses for March   
  -   Outlined new Purchase Orders for March  
   
  
  
 Completed Projects: 
  -   158 Work-Orders completed in March 
  -   Smart Board installation complete at Fogarty 
  -   Roofing projects 
  -   Cotteral classroom RTU replacement 
  -   Spraying services quote          
       
  
  
 Projects in Progress: 
  -   Currently have 85 Work-Orders in progress 
  -   Smart Boards to install at the High School  
  -   Vo-Ag barns construction 
  -   Performance Review  
  -   Preparing for summer cleaning 
  -   Quotes to replace paper towel dispensers and towels 
  -   Obtaining quotes for mowing services 
 
 
  
 New Projects: 
  -   Lighting Replacement proposal being done to convert to LED lighting  
  
  
  

97



Guthrie Public Schools 

Finance Committee Meeting Minutes 

April 5, 2016 

4:00 P.M. 

In attendance:  Dr. Mike Simpson, Dennis Schulz, Doug Ogle, Carmen Walters, Eldona Woodruff, 
Gail Davis, Tina Smedley, Janna Pierson and Jana Frey (filling in for Vicki Biggs) 

Absent:  Vicki Biggs 

Dr. Simpson discussed the state of the budget and current projections. 

Mr. Schulz opened the meeting by informing the committee the first pages were routine 
financial reports and if they had questions to contact him. 

Mr. Schulz spoke on the following: 

 Contract with Putnam & Company, PLLC 

This is a contract renewal for auditing services and is the fifth year they will be 
contracted with the District. 

 Lunch Price Increases 

Child Nutrition is required to perform this calculation annually in order for the 
District to receive federal funds.  The calculation resulted in the District needing 
to raise the cost of student meals by $.10 which is the minimum required 
amount to stay in compliance. 

 APC Food Service Purchasing Consortium Agreement 

This agreement allows us to use the purchasing consortium to receive volume 
pricing for our grocery supplies. 

 Agreement Renewal with Southwest Foodservice Excellence 

This is the fifth year for this agreement with SFE.  They provide foodservice for 
our District and are self-sufficient.   

Mr. Ogle spoke on the following: 

 Learning Sciences International Agreement 

This agreement allows access to software used to perform teacher and 
administrative evaluations. 

98



Mr. Schulz announced there is a copy of an additional new account request and fundraiser that 
was not received in time for the Finance Committee Packet. 

Dr. Simpson announced there are copies of the E-rate Technology Plan and E-rate Contracts 
which were not received in time for the Finance Committee Packet.  Mr. Benson notified Dr. 
Simpson of the recommendation to retain Cox as our internet provider rather than A T & T.  The 
conversion from Cox to A T & T would be a very intense changeover. 

Dr. Simpson reported on the following: 

 TransPar has had a change in leadership within our District.  They have agreed to reduce 
the cost of services provided to the District this current year by $1000.  They have also agreed 
to reduce the cost of next year’s services by $1200 per month should we decide to renew their 
contract.   

  

 

 

 

 

 

99



Guthrie Public Schools 

Curriculum Committee Meeting 

April 5, 2016 

5:00 P.M. 

 

Members Present:  Dr. Mike Simpson, Carmen Walters, Doug Ogle, Eldona Woodruff, Janna 
Pierson, Gail Davis and Tina Smedley 

Members Absent: Travis Sallee (filled in for by Tina Smedley) 

 

Ms. Walters 

• 5th Grade Growth and Development 
A letter will go out April 21, 2016 to parents for them to opt in if they would like for 
their child to attend the lesson that will be held Wednesday, May 11, 2016. The 
students will be separated in gender sessions.  
 

• RSA Update 
Vocabulary and Comprehension/Critical Literacy are considered to meet RSA 
requirements on the 3rd Grade Reading OCCT state test. Based on SB630, each student 
will receive one of two statuses: Meets RSA Criteria, Does Not Meet RSA Criteria. 

 

Mrs. Woodruff 

• District Data Profile FFY 2014 
A review of the District Data Profile included ten indicators used to make the district 
determination. The district was identified as needs assistance due to indicator 4A: 
Students with disabilities with long term suspensions. 

100


	Board Minutes 3-7-16.pdf
	GUTHRIE PUBLIC SCHOOLS
	BOARD MINUTES

	2016 13 Component Technology Plan.pdf
	SCHOOLS
	Executive Summary
	Vision Statement
	Mission Statement
	Guthrie Public Schools Technology Priority Goals
	Professional Development Technology Goal

	Impact on Curriculum, Instruction, and Evaluation


	2016 BOE Erate Report.pdf
	Category 1

	C-27 Administration of Federal Programs.pdf
	ADMINISTRATION OF FEDERAL PROGRAMS
	The district participates in a variety of federal programs and receives funding (“Awards”) through those programs.  All district representatives will comply with all regulatory guidance and laws applicable to the individual programs.
	The district will regularly monitor its compliance efforts and make appropriate information available to the federal awarding agency (“FAA”), state pass-through entity (“State Entity”), inspectors general, and/or US comptroller.  The district will mak...
	Employee Compensation
	Regardless of the source of the funds, employees are paid pursuant to the district’s salary schedule for all work performed.  If personnel costs are paid with Awards, those costs will be calculated as wages and fringe benefits permitted in 2 C.F.R. § ...
	Employees who are paid with Award funds – in whole or in part - must maintain adequate records documenting the time spent performing each set of duties so that their compensation can be correctly allocated to the Award.  2 C.F.R. § 200.430
	Conflict of Interest / Mandatory Disclosure Regarding Contracting

	C-27A Federal Programs Complaint Policy.pdf
	FEDERAL PROGRAMS COMPLAINT POLICY




